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As 2022 closes, we move out from under the 
shadow of the global COVID pandemic to 
embrace a future that is far from clear. We face 
a world with levels of inflation that haven’t 
been seen, certainly in New Zealand, within 
a generation. The war in the Ukraine and 
other geopolitical and economic issues mean 
we continue to see significant supply chain 
disruption. Furthermore, border restrictions and 
continued limits on immigration exacerbate an 
unprecedented labour shortage. The time ahead 
is challenging for any business, and this is also true 
for Tūhura Otago Museum. 
 
That said, with support from central government, 
via the COVID protection programmes delivered 
through the Ministry of Business, Innovation and 
Employment (MBIE), some additional support 
from the Dunedin City Council (DCC) and other 
contributing authorities, and the careful husbandry 
of resources from Ian, Murray, and the rest of 
the management team, we have weathered 
the COVID storm well, if not without challenge. 
Indeed, the past year has been filled with 
highlights, to which Ian will allude in his Year  
in Review. I would like to take a more  
future-focussed view however. 

The first priority of a museum must be the care 
and protection of its collection. Over the past 
few years we have been striving to improve that 
protection. Work programmes were undertaken 
to ascertain where there was risk to our collection, 
and plans are now in place to eliminate,  
or mitigate those risks. The initial phases of this 
work are ongoing through the Museum’s usual 
operating budget, with further support from  
our reserves. We believe we have a clear and 
achievable path forward and have taken the  
first steps along that path. We look forward to 
sharing the details regarding that journey in the 
near future. 

It is, however, a journey we cannot make alone. 
We currently receive a levy from contributiong 
authorities that covers less than half our operating 
budget. The other metropolitan museums in 
Christchurch and Auckland, with comparable 
collection sizes, receive significantly more in 
support from their respective councils. This is 
no criticism of the DCC or other authorities. It is 
simply a reflection of our geographic location and 
the rate-payer base upon which our authorities can 
draw. None of the metropolitan museums, indeed, 
no museums other than Te Papa Tongawera, as 
New Zealand’s National Museum, receive any 
direct central government support. 
 
We believe this is simply no longer sustainable. 
Tūhura Otago Museum houses one of the largest 
and most significant collections of taoka in the 
country. From a research perspective, it is of 
both national and international significance, with 
researchers coming from across the nation and 
the farthest corners of the globe to access the 
treasures that we hold on behalf of our community, 
our people, our country.
 
This invaluable research and cultural infrastructure 
cannot be, should not be, supported through 
your rates alone. This needs to be recognised at 
a government level, where we believe there is 
substantial sympathy for this need. We ask you 
as the citizens of Dunedin, Otago, the south and 
broader nation, whose collection we hold on your 
behalf, to lend your voices to ours in the year 
ahead and secure its future protection.

 

David Hutchinson
Chair
Otago Museum Trust Board

Image: Otago Museum/Alan Dove Photography
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This is my ninth introduction to the Annual 
Report as Director. However, it is my first  
as Director of Tūhura Otago Museum.  
The gifting of the name Tūhura to the 
Museum by mana whenua just before 
Matariki was a real highlight of this past year. 
Our new name recognises the Museum’s 
important role in casting light upon taoka, 
and as a place to discover and explore our 
world. By officially adopting the name Tūhura 
Otago Museum, the Board send a strong 
signal that this institution is determined to 
fulfil its duties as a Treaty partner. 

Another memorable highlight occurred in 
June 2022. The Museum played a central 
role in Dunedin’s marking of New Zealand’s 
first Matariki public holiday. In partnership 
with local rūnaka and Dunedin City Council, 
a dawn ceremony was staged outside the 
Museum as Matariki rose over the horizon.  
A crowd of hundreds gathered on the 
Museum Reserve to remember those who 
had passed in the previous year as images 
of loved ones lost were projected onto 
the Museum building. Following karakia, 
a stunning performance by Waka Kōtuia, 
and speeches by community leaders, a free 
breakfast hosted inside the Museum was 
enjoyed by a huge crowd.

As you will learn from reading this report, 
there are several projects presently underway 
which undoubtedly will have significant local 
and national impact in the months and years 
to come. The Tū Tonu project, which seeks to 
understand the needs of museums in Otago 
and Southland, has been particularly well 
received, with colleagues across the region 
enthusiastically engaging with our team 
to upskill and share knowledge. I am also 
particularly excited to see the results of the 
MBIE-funded Tūhura Tuarangi – Aotearoa in 
Space touring roadshow which will make its 
debut at the Museum next year. 

As in any year, as well as some very exciting 
highs, there were some lows. The long 
shadow of COVID-19 continues to impact 
our work. The Museum was closed to the 
public from 17 August to 7 September 
when the nation was in lockdown. Despite 
implementing a vaccine mandate many staff 
caught COVID-19 which for a short period 
stretched the resources of the Museum 
to keep public offerings available, and 
visitor and outreach numbers were severely 
impacted and remain significantly down on 
numbers prior to the pandemic. 

In early June, the Museum was informed by 
the Ministry of Education that our bid for 
funding from the Enriching Local Curriculum 
(ELC) tender process had been unsuccessful. 
The ELC programme replaces the 
longstanding Learning Experiences Outside 
the Classroom (LEOTC) which has funded 
the Museum’s work with schools for more 
than two decades. The loss of funding has 
the potential to seriously impact our ability 
to operate our education programmes, and 
finding replacement funds will be a real focus 
going forward.

In terms of funding, we continue to be 
grateful for the support we received from 
the ratepayers of Dunedin, Central Otago, 
Waitaki and Clutha over the past year which 
covers approximately 50% of our operational 
needs. However, the money we receive 
from these councils does not cover the 
ever-increasing depreciation needs of our 
complex site and we do need to find a way 
to address this issue soon.  
This year we continued discussion with 
colleagues from Auckland and Canterbury 
Museums about a joint approach to the 
Government for funding to cover the cost of 
nationally important collection items held in 
our institutions.

I should like to record my sincere 
appreciation to the Museum Trust Board 
members, the Māori Advisory Committee, 
and the Association of Friends of the 
Otago Museum. The time they invest 
to provide governance, guidance, and 
encouragement is crucial to the Museum’s 
success. I’d particularly like to thank Board 
Chair, Professor David Hutchinson, Board 
Deputy Chair Laura Black and Māori Advisory 
Committee Chair Matapura Ellison for their 
support throughout the year.

Finally, I must acknowledge the Museum 
staff. Their enthusiasm and passion for the 
work of the Museum is a constant inspiration 
especially given the particular challenge of 
an unprecedented global pandemic.  
It is an honour to work with such a talented 
team of people.

Ian Griffin
Director
Otago Museum
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Matariki  
Ahuka Nui event

one

two

three

four

five

Kura Pounamu:  
Our Treasured Stone  
exhibition

It’s all in the making:
The Margery Blackman
Textile Collection 
exhibition

Golden Hour  
by Ethan Vanstaden  
Otago Museum 
Photography Awards 
2022 entry

Taxidermy of NZ 
Spearfishing Record for
Largest Wild Goldfish
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six

seven

eight

nine

ten

Sea Monsters: 
Prehistoric Ocean 
Predators exhibition

After Dark – 
A Night in the Tropics

Pyjamarama event

Michele Beevors:
Anatomy Lessons
exhibition

Kiingi Tuheitia 
Portraiture Award
exhibition
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VISION

MISSION To inspire 
and enrich our 
communities, 
and enhance 
understanding of 
the world through 
our collection, our 
people, and the 
stories we share.

Kia whakaoho – 
Awaken wonder, 
curiosity, and 
understanding 
in our world.
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To collect, preserve, act as a regional 
repository for research, display, and 
otherwise make available to the people 
of the present and the future, material 
and information relating to the natural, 
cultural, and scientific heritage of the 
peoples of the world.

To promote interest and education in 
the natural, cultural, and scientific 
heritage of New Zealanders.

To place particular emphasis on those 
activities as they relate to the greater 
Otago region, world history, natural 
history, and science, and, where 
appropriate, their relationships 
in a wider, global context.

To maintain a world-class Museum 
for the people of Otago and Aotearoa, 
the Museum has made a commitment 
to values that shall underpin our 
operations and practices:

THE 
OTAGO 
MUSEUM 
TRUST 
BOARD 
ACT 
1996 

VALUES

We will care for our taoka, 
tākata, and whakapapa* 

We will guard our taoka, whakapapa, 
and tākata for future generations

We will grow and foster expertise through 
research, learning, and collaboration

We will collaborate and create partnerships

We will ensure our mana is evident in our 
integrity, ethical decision-making, and leadership

MANAAKITAKA

KAITIAKITAKA 

TOHUKATAKA  

WHANAUKATAKA

RAKATIRATAKA

* Taoka – refers to the tangible and intangible treasures of the Museum; tākata refers to the people of Otago Museum – its staff, 
   visitors, partners, stakeholders, and communities; whakapapa refers to the Museum’s relationships and history.

10
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Otago Museum Trust Board
							     
Chair								        Appointed by

Professor David Hutchinson						      University of Otago 
BSc (Hons), PGDip (Arts), PhD, CPHYS, FInstP, FNZIP, MInstD 

Deputy Chair

Laura Black							       Dunedin City Council 
BBS 

Members

Rachel Wesley							       Mana whenua 
BA, PGDip (Arts) 

Brigid Casey							       Association of Friends of the Otago Museum 
MCom, GradCert (TertTeach), DipGrad, PGDip (Tour), BHSc 

Councillor Gaynor Finch						      Regional funding authorities 
NZ Vet Nurse, Hearings Commissioner					     (Clutha District Council) 

His Worship, Mayor Aaron Hawkins					     Dunedin City Council 

Professor Nancy Longnecker						      Otago Institute for the Arts and Sciences 
BSc (Hons), MSc, PhD						      (The Royal Society Te Apārangi) 

Professor Lisa Matisoo-Smith 						     University of Otago 
BA, MA, PhD, FSA, FRSNZ 

Councillor Chris Staynes						      Dunedin City Council  
BSc, CMInstD 

Ex Officio

Treasurer 
Jamie Adamson (Deloitte) 

Otago Museum Director 
Ian Griffin JP, PhD, CRSNZ  

Secretary  
Jane Gregory 
BAppMgt 

Audit Finance and Risk Management Committee (AFRM)

Gaynor Finch (Chair) 
David Hutchinson  
Laura Black 
Chris Staynes  

Staffing Committee

David Hutchinson 
Laura Black 
Gaynor Finch

Executive Committee

Convened as and when required
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Māori Advisory Committee 
The Māori Advisory Committee’s role is to facilitate an effective, positive relationship 
between Tūhura Otago Museum and mana whenua papatipu rūnaka of Te Tai o Araiteuru.  

			 
Committee members					     Representation 

Matapura Ellison (Chair)					     Kāti Huirapa Rūnaka ki Puketeraki 

Emeritus Professor John R Broughton				    Kāti Huirapa Rūnaka ki Puketeraki 
CNZM, ED, JP (Rtd) BDS, PhD, PGDipComDent, DipGrad 

Jane Graveson						      Te Rūnanga o Moeraki  

Koa Whitau-Kean						      Te Rūnanga o Moeraki 

Marshall Hoffman						      Hokonui Rūnanga 

Amber Bridgman						      Hokonui Rūnanga 

Paulette Tamati-Elliffe					     Te Rūnanga o Ōtākou  

Winnie Matahaere						      Te Rūnanga o Ōtākou  
BA 

Rachel Wesley 						      Otago Museum Trust Board Mana Whenua representative 
BA, PGDipArts 

Honorary Curators/Research Associates 
							       Specialist area

Dr Melville Carr						      Philately 
PhD, DIC, FNZIC 

Dr Rosi Crane						      Science history 
PhD 

Emeritus Professor Robert Hannah				    Classics 
BA (Hons), MPhil, FSA, FRSNZ 
 
Anthony Harris						      Entomology 
MSc (Hons) (First class) 

Associate Professor Steve Kerr				    Entomology 
PhD 

Dr Jane Malthus						      European dress 
PhD 

Dr Bronwen Presswell					     Parasitology 
PhD 

Dr Anthony Reay						      Geology 
PhD 

Professor Glenn Summerhayes				    Oceanic archaeology 
OL, FSA, FLS, FRAI 

Dr Barbara Anderson 					     Ecology 
BSc(Hons), PhD



13

Association of Friends of the Otago Museum

Funders, partners and supporters

President’s Report 

Kia ora koutou 

After a rather disrupted couple of years, it has been good to 
return to something resembling a new normal. It was a great 
privilege to hear from Dr Gerard O’Regan at last year’s  
H D Skinner Lecture, and the Friends in Focus monthly talks have 
continued to be well supported, this year covering a broad range 
of topics, from an update on the fate of Foulden Maar to the lost 
portraits of the Austen family. It was also a great pleasure to catch 
up with many of you at last year’s Christmas party.  

The Museum’s archiving project has also advanced substantially 
under the leadership of Gareth West, with the Friends 
contributing both financially, through the purchase of a scanner 
and archiving materials, and in a hands-on capacity. Thanks to 
the help of a group of fearless Friends, all the photographs from 
the Forrester spider collection have been digitally recorded, and 
volunteers are now working their way through H D Skinner’s early 
correspondence.  We would like to thank the Museum for allowing 
us the opportunity to be involved in this exciting project, and 
Gareth for his organisation and oversight, without which none 
of this would have been possible. We look forward to more such 
opportunities in the future. 

 

The Council would like to thank our patron, Jane Malthus, and 
express our deepest appreciation to Rachel MacJeff, who has done 
a wonderful job as liaison between the Friends and the Museum. 
Thanks also to Bronwyn Simes, who is stepping down from the 
Council after two years in the role. She has done an excellent job in 
co-ordinating with Gareth to ensure the success of the volunteering 
project, and her expertise and insight have been invaluable. Thanks 
to Anne Ford as well, who is also leaving the Council. Her energy 
and expertise will be sorely missed.  

I would also like to express my personal appreciation to everybody 
on the Council who has made my time as President far easier than 
it might otherwise have been. Finally, I would like to thank you, the 
members, for continuing to support the Friends and the Museum. 
The news of the loss of Ministry of Education funding highlights the 
need for a strong community voice to advocate for and support this 
special institution, both now and into the future. 

Cushla McKinney,  

President 

Council of the Association of Friends of the Otago Museum

Patron
Jane Malthus 

President
Cushla McKinney  

Treasurer
Brigid Casey

Dunedin City Council, Waitaki District Council, Clutha District Council 
Central Otago District Council,  
Ministry of Business, Innovation and Employment:  
Participatory Science Platform and Curious Minds Funds 
Ministry of Education: LEOTC Fund 
The Dodd-Walls Centre for Photonic and Quantum Technologies 
MacDiarmid Institute for Advanced Materials and Nanotechnologies 
Perpetual Guardian Trust 
Otago Regional Council 
Otago Polytechnic 
Ministry for Culture and Heritage 
National Institute for Water and Atmospheric Research 
Otago Daily Times 
Otago Community Trust 
Deloitte 
Distinction Dunedin 
iD Dunedin  
Wild Dunedin 
Gravity Events 
Vision 
Orokonui Ecosanctuary 
Larnach Castle 
Monarch Wildlife Tours & Cruises 
University Bookshop 
Royal Albatross Colony 
Society of Māori Astronomy Research and Traditions 

Otago University Students’ Association 
GNS Science/Te Pū Ao 
New Zealand Integrated Ocean Discovery Program 
Local astronomical societies throughout New Zealand 
Antarctica New Zealand 
University of Otago 
University of Canterbury 
University of Auckland 
Regional museums throughout Aotearoa 
BioHeritage National Science Challenge 
Department of Conservation 
Manaaki Whenua – Landcare Research 
New Zealand Arthropod Collection 
Museum of New Zealand Te Papa Tongarewa 
Canterbury Museum 
Auckland Museum 
MOTAT 
Australian National Maritime Museum 
ACMI (formerly Australian Centre for the Moving Image) 
Sports Otago 
New Zealand Space Agency  
Te Rūnanga o Ngāi Tahu  
Embassy of the United States 
British High Commission 
Genomics Aotearoa 

Council members
Bronwyn Simes   
Julie Pearse   
Anne Ford 
Doug Holborow 
Warren Jowett 
Joelle den Toom 
David Butler
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WHĀIKA TUATAHI 
GOAL ONE

WHAKAMARAKATIA TE MANA 
O TE KOHIKA TAOKA 
Upholding the mana 
of the collection 



Dr Ray Forster was Museum Director between 1957 to 1987. 
He was an active researcher and world-renowned arachnologist, 
backed up by fastidious collecting. During his lifetime he 
described in excess of 600 species descriptions. 

Dr Forster’s significant taxonomic research was published in the 
Bulletins of the Otago Museum series – Spiders of New Zealand.  
Now out of print, this was a valuable resource for researchers that 
deserved to be more accessible. The Collections and Research 
team digitised back catalogues of the Bulletins onto the Museum 
website, making this work publicly available (along with the 
Records of Otago Museum zoology and anthropology series). 
To do this, the Natural Science Curators obtained copyright 
permissions, and the series was scanned and the text in those 
scans made searchable.   

PhD candidate, James Crofts-Bennett, spent several months 
working with Forster’s collection, revisiting different aspects of 
Forster’s work and assisting in cataloguing specimens.   

Alongside the work to review and make Dr. Forster’s research 
publicly accessible, an exhibit celebrating what would have been 
Ray’s 100th birthday was installed in the Forster Hall of the 
Nature Gallery. 

Forster Spiders  

Ray Forster (below) and contents of a special display case  
installed in Nature Gallery   

15
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During this period 111 moa coprolites (fossilized moa excrement) 
and microscope slides containing isolated plant cuticle were 
donated to the Museum by Dr Mike Pole. The acquisition is 
important, as these samples and slides were used in a scientific 
study to further our knowledge of the past ecology and 
paleoenvironment of Central Otago. 
 
These were taken from moa shelter sites, mostly around Cromwell 
Gorge. Now a barren landscape, the plant material within the 
coprolites show us that the area was once covered in a thick 
kōwhai forest, giving us a glimpse into the past environment and 
providing a roadmap for restoration. 

This donation offers future researchers a valuable source of 
primary research material for understanding ancient New Zealand.

Coprolites and Kōwhai 

Moa coprolite collected from a Cromwell George moa shelter site,  
donated by Dr. Mike Pole. Top: Kōwhai flowers in bloom.  
Photos both by Kane Fleury.
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The Blumhardt Foundation was founded in 2004, by ceramist and 
arts educator, Dame Doreen Blumhardt, in order to foster, support, 
collect, and display the best examples of decorative arts and 
design in New Zealand.   

With the assistance of the Blumhardt Fund, the Museum was 
able to acquire an exciting group of additions to our collection. 
It’s a field in which the Museum has collected for about three 
quarters of a century and this partnership has meant an exciting 
opportunity to address some of the more obvious gaps in areas of 
the collection by approaching specific makers.   

In the first year of working with the Blumhardt Foundation our 
focus was to contact mainly Ōtepoti craftspeople and artists, with 
national and international profiles. The support of the Blumhardt 
Fund has enabled us to acquire examples of work by a number of 
these talented individuals.  

We are grateful to the Foundation and their support, which is 
enabling us to enrich our collections.   

Blumhardt 
Donation  

Hand embroidered rendering of a Jelly Tip wrapper, Jay Hutchinson.  
Below: Detail of Mates necklace, Jane Dodd. 
Acquired with the assistance of the Blumhardt Foundation, 2021,  
and the Fels and Lyders Funds



This year our Collections team partnered in diverse research and 
community archaeology projects that have attracted prestigious 
grants from RSNZ Marsden, MBIE Endeavour Smart Ideas, and 
Unlocking Curious Minds funds. 

We joined the University of Otago Archaeology Programme in 
supporting Te Rūnanga o Moeraki’s community excavation of 
the eroding Tikoraki urupā reserve. Archaeological collections 
recovered from Fiordland in the 1960s were sorted live on a 
weekly video connection to audiences in Kā Paroro o Haumumu: 
Coastal Flows, Coastal Incursions, an exhibition by Alex Monteith 
(University of Auckland) in the 10th Asia Pacific Triennial of 
Contemporary Art in the Queensland Art Gallery, Gallery of 
Modern Art in Brisbane.  

Research with the Universities of Canterbury and Auckland 
continues to look at offshore islands such as Ruapuke in Foveaux 
Strait and the Subantarctic Auckland Islands to understand 
how Māori actively shaped their past landscapes using models 
of niche construction. Another project with the University of 
Auckland is developing rapid 3D recording and machine learning 
for cost effective analysis of stone artefacts. Also drawing on 
historic archaeological samples held by the Museum, research 
with the University of Waikato is developing a marine calibration 
curve that will enable researchers to use radiocarbon dating on 
shell, the most common material surviving in Māori midden, to 
date sites with accuracy to within an adult lifetime and provide a 
much better chronology of New Zealand’s past. 

Archaeology 

Top: Tikoraki urupā (top) is being undercut by coastal erosion.
Bottom Right: Archaeological evidence of pre-European settlement 
is just a few centimetres below the turf. 
Bottom Left: The collaborative team excavating are Toni Hoeta and Lana Arun 
(Tūhura Otago Museum) in the foreground and Leigh Milmine (Te Rūnanga o Moeraki), 
Anne-Claire Mauger (University of Otago) and Marie Dunn (Ngāi Tahu archaeologist).

18
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WHĀIKA TUARUA
GOAL TWO

WHAKAURUA Ā TĀTOU HĀPORI 
KI TE WHAKAOHOOHO 
TE MĪHARO, TE MANAWA REKA, 
TE WHAKAMĀRAMA HOKI 
Engaging our community to inspire 
wonder, curiosity and understanding
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New Zealand’s newest public holiday was marked by Ahuka Nui, 
a dawn ceremony at the Museum that celebrated te tau hou 
Māori. Created in partnership with local rūnaka and the  
Dunedin City Council this was the official opening of the  
city’s Matariki holiday.  

The dawn reappearance of stars Puaka and Matariki signal the 
Māori New Year, a period of reflection and celebration for iwi, 
in a time to farewell the people who have passed away in the 
previous year and embrace the new year that is coming. 

To embody the meaning of Matariki, the Museum reached out to 
the community to request images of loved ones who had passed 
away. These were then projected on the Museum building during 
the ceremony which included karakia, waiata, kapa haka and a 
free shared breakfast. 

Around 800 people gathered for the ceremony to reflect and 
to celebrate in an event that symbolised coming together 
and sharing the celebration of the new season. It was widely 
publicised on national media and received excellent feedback 
from attendees. The Museum hopes to repeat this annually in a 
special tradition for Ōtepoti. 

 

Puaka, Matariki 

Matariki Ahuka Nui Dawn Ceremony June 2022
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This period we have focused on new events and increasing  
our audience segments beyond our traditional family and 
‘museum’ markets.  

This financial year we increased the number of people 
attending our events by 30%. 

These new events attracted new audiences, with Wine & 
Designs, featuring local makers who taught craft workshops, to 
Gin and the Collections, where visitors went on basement tours 
before attending a gin tasting, and Seniors’ Days, where we 
offered retirees discounted coffee and free talks in our galleries. 
We have received national media attention for these events, 
increasing brand awareness and visitorship, and increased 
revenues from Café, Venues, Shop, and other commercial 
branches as a result. 

The events were a way of engaging parts of the community 
that did not often visit our Museum, with young professionals, 
couples, and others targeted. The programme has been wildly 
successful, with many regularly booking out and amassing 
waiting lists. 

New events for 
new audiences 

We try to engage with all members of our community, vital 
to this is including Māori and Pasifika voices as part of our 
organisation. These staff members are helping to shape 
our work and ways of speaking to the community through 
programmes that will be delivered throughout the nation. 

Emily Eastgate has joined Science Outreach to share knowledge 
around science and climate change that is affecting the Pacific 
to Pasifika youth in an upcoming showcase, Islands to Arks. 
From a Rotuman, Fijian background, Emily has brought new 
cultural understandings to the Museum and the stories  
that we tell. 

Solar Tsunamis aims to share the science of solar storms in a 
way that is rooted in Māori knowledge systems. Engagement 
Coordinator Māori, Toni Hoeta, has driven the showcase 
development, and has started sharing the roadshow with 
tamariki in Kura. This engagement at a creator level is  
enriching our organisation, and reaching people with new  
and old knowledge.  

Pasifika and 
Māori outreach 

Attendees making bitters at a Wine & Design event

Launch of Islands to Arks outreach programme
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Engaging our community also involves embracing new 
technologies and ways of displaying information to captivate 
audiences. Plunge was an augmented reality (AR) exhibition that 
did just that. Scanning QR codes took viewers into an immersive, 
virtual underwater world.   

In a space filled with 3D chrome and glass-coloured prehistoric 
creatures and sea-life that swirled and dived; bubbles and water 
orbs that danced around the room, visitors were immersed in a 
watery world of imagination. 

New Zealand’s first wholly AR exhibition, Plunge was made more 
special by being an entirely in-house created project. From art 
direction to illustration, software to hardware, this was created 
entirely by the Museum’s own team, who made something at once 
beautiful, slick, and transcendent.  

Paired with the ticketed exhibition, Sea Monsters: Prehistoric 
Ocean Predators, Plunge was a free exhibition that aimed to 
bridge the gap between art and science, accessible to all in our 
community, that used creativity and beauty to form a connection 
to our planet’s natural history and vulnerable marine environment.  

New tech: Plunge 

Plunge: An Augmented Reality Experience
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WHĀIKA TUATORU
GOAL THREE

WHAKAHAUMARU TE WĀHEKE 
I TE AO HURIHURI 
A secure and sustainable future 
in a changing world
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The impacts of the COVID pandemic have been marked this 
financial year. Venues, Education, and other offerings have been 
disrupted. Requirements for vaccination and mask wearing, 
along with general concern from the public, impacted on visitor 
numbers, delivery, and revenues. Despite this, the Museum has 
continued to maintain operations and a wide variety of offerings 
to the city of Dunedin.  

COVID 

While many of our large-scale in-house exhibitions have long been 
developed with partners, this year we have extended these to 
smaller displays and science outreach projects, as well as forming 
closer ties with local festivals. 

The Beautiful Science Gallery was host to one of these digital 
exhibitions through a partnership with Genomics Aotearoa. 
Genome: Science of Life, explained the science and stories of 
New Zealand’s role in genomic research. From the history of DNA 
discoveries, to the role of our scientists, to the impact of this 
field on the COVID response, the exhibition was a detailed and 
in-depth telling of science, paired with graphics from our Design 
team. This will be exhibited again in the Museum in the future. 

One of the most popular exhibit partnerships was Michele 
Beevors: Anatomy Lessons. Beevors’ large-scale knitted skeletons 
alongside interpretation from Natural Science Curators received a 
lot of media attention and exceptional feedback from visitors. 

This year we partnered with Dunedin festivals to bring visitors 
into the Museum and the city and to strengthen their offerings. 
Wild Dunedin hosted 21 of their events at the Museum over the 
week of the festival, PRIDE partnered with us for a variety of film 
screenings and activities, and iD Fashion held their awards in our 
Museum along with many of their events.  

These partnerships, along with Polyfest, Diwali and others allowed 
us to connect with our communities in a reciprocal relationship 
and bring our city and Museum alive at a time of hardship within 
the community. 

Partnerships 

Otago Museum visitors highlighting the use 
of masks to reduce the spread of COVID

Attendees mingling before the 2021 iD Fashion
Show and Symposium held at Otago Museum
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Funding is one of the ways that the Museum is becoming a 
sustainable business, and this financial year, many parts of the 
Museum successfully attracted funding to help support our 
organisation.  

Tū Tonu is a large project run by Collections and Research funded 
by the Ministry of Culture and Heritage Te Tahua Whakakaha 
Cultural Sector Capability Fund. This project brings together 
Otago Southland’s museums, galleries, heritage experiences, art 
societies, creative spaces, libraries, historical societies, and rūnaka, 
including over 110 organisations.   

The project has included surveying the network and reviewing the 
support they require. Since the start of the project, 18 training 
events have been held. A monthly forum was also established to 
support collaboration between our local oral history repositories. 
Many Museum departments have been offering training and 
support, from Design and Marketing, to Conservation and 
Collections, to Education and Visitor Engagement. This work 
strengthens our industry and has been gladly received by 
regional museums who are benefiting greatly through the added 
knowledge and resources made available. 

Solar Tsunamis is a Science Outreach programme that aims to 
communicate and prepare for the potential range of impacts of 
solar activity, in particular the potential effects on our electrical 
grid and communication systems. This is part of a five-year 
research project led by the University of Otago and funded 
by MBIE. The Museum’s preliminary showcase was developed 
during this period, with outreach in Invercargill and Rēkohu, 
Chatham Islands. This work is important, making our country and 
communities better informed and more resilient.  

Funding for innovative 
projects 

As we progress towards our goal of biculturalism and reflecting 
our changing society, an important step in this journey is how 
we represent ourselves to our community. This year we were 
honoured to be gifted the name ‘Tūhura’ by mana whenua. 
Meaning to discover, investigate, and explore; the name has 
already been in use since 2017 as the name of the Museum’s 
science centre.  

The name reflects the wairua of the institution, with our vision to 
inspire curiosity, wonder, and understanding in our world. The 
Museum’s Māori Advisory Committee, which has representatives 
from all four rūnaka in Otago, played a large part in determining 
the name. The Museum is proud to receive this taoka and and we 
acknowledge the great significance to our institution.  

As we work to honour Te Tiriti and be a truly bicultural 
organisation, the gifted name reflects the Museum progressing on 
our journey to fully embrace our nation’s rich culture and heritage.   

 

Our new name 

Toni Hoeta teaching students in the newly  
developed Solar Tsunamis outreach programme

Kura Pounamu: Our Treasured Stone, the first  
exhibition to represent Tūhura, the Museums name
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Otago Museum Staff 2021 – 2022
Executive 

Murray Bayly, BCom, CA					     Commercial Director

Craig Grant, PhD						      Director, Visitor Experience and Science Engagement

Jane Gregory, BAppMgt					     Executive Assistant

Ian Griffin, JP, PhD, CRSNZ					     Director

Stephanie Kaan, BCom, CA					     Finance Manager

Emma Lang, BA						      Human Resource Manager

Robert Morris, MSocSci					     Director, Collections, Research, Education and Design

Kate Oktay, BA						      Marketing Manager

Gerard O’Regan, PhD					     Pouhere Kaupapa Māori

Craig Scott, BDesComm					     Head of Exhibitions and Creative Services

Collections, Research, Education

Barbara Anderson, PhD					     Research Scientist

Lana Arun, MIndS						      Assistant Curator, Māori

Daniel Ashton						      Education Presenter

Martin Bainbridge, BSc Zoology				    Project Officer Hidden Hazards Project

Stephanie Baldwin						      Sleepover Presenter

Chris Burgess, BASc, PGDipTchg				    Education Manager

Emma Burns, BSc						      Curator, Natural Science

Mikayla Cameron						      Sleepover Presenter

Stella Caulton						      Education Presenter

Jen Copedo, BA (Hons)					     Assistant Collection Manager, Humanities

Rosemary Coppell, MA (Conservation), BA (Hons) in History	 Conservator

Grace Davidson, BSc (Ecology)				    Education Presenter

Samantha Finch, BA (Anthropology)				    Conservator Support

Kane Fleury, MSc						      Assistant Curator, Natural Science

Amanda George, PhD					     Education Officer

Emily Gray, MSc 						      Education Officer

Anne Harlow, MMHS					     Collection Manager, Humanities

Paola Healey						      Sleepover Presenter

Alice Houston-Page					     Education Presenter

On Lee Lau, MSc						      Assistant Collection Manager, Natural Science

Nyssa Mildwaters, MA, MSc, ACR, FIIC				   Conservation Manager

Miriam Noonan, BA (Hons) Theatre Studies			   Education Presenter

Gerard O’Regan, PhD					     Curator Māori

Cody Phillips, PGDipSci					     Collection Manager, Natural Science

Shannah Rhynard-Geil, MSc					     Conservator

Luke Robb						      Sleepover Presenter

Kimberley Stephenson, MA, Bdes, PGDip MHST			   Project Manager Tu Tonu Regional Museums

Hannah Thomas						      Education Presenter

Sarah Waterman, BA (Hons), PGDipEng				   Education Presenter

Gareth West, MLISc					     Archivist

Moira White, MA (Hons)					     Curator, Humanities
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Exhibitions and Creative Services

Andrew Charlton, BSc					     Developer, Systems and Interactive Media

Shanaya Cunningham, BDesComm				    Exhibitions and Creative Services Officer

Prudence Jopson, DipVisArts					    Exhibitions and Creative Services Officer

Max Mollison, BDes (Fashion)					    Exhibitions and Creative services officer 

Annah Taggart, BDesComm					     Exhibitions and Creative Services Officer

	
Finance, Facilities, and Commercial 

Brenda Barron						      Building Services Officer

Dale Beatson						      Kitchen Assistant

Lee-Arna Blair, BAppMgt					     Assistant Accountant

Callum Booth						      Café Cook

Oliver Cameron						      Kitchen Assistant

Catherine Carr						      Venue Host

Gina Cavanagh						      HR Manager

Georgia Clark						      Venue Host

Abigail Clayton						      Shop Assistant

Zarah Coote						      Café Host

Georgia Copeman						      Café Host

Margot Deveraux, PGDipCApSc				    Project Manager, Health and Safety Advisor

Gemma Douglas						      Café Host

Kayla Dwyer						      Café Host

Sarah Eunson						      Café Host

Falaviena Faiva, BA						     Shop Assistant

Lautele Fetalaiga						      Venue Host

Alana Gathercole-Smith					     Café Host

Garry Gibson						      Production and Projects Officer

Vanessa Graham						      Venue Manager

Helen Gregory, BASc					     Shop Assistant

Shayla Haberfield						      Venue Host

Georgia Hamilton, BSc					     Café Host

Jack Hanan						      Kitchen Assistant

Sarah Harkness						      Shop Assistant

Danielle Harris, BCom					     Accountant

Caitlin Harrison-Craig					     Venue Host

Richard Hockney						      Facilities Officer

Anna Hooker						      Venue Host

April Horton						      Venue Host

Nichola Keen						      Café Host

Geoffrey Kern, BA						      Assistant Café Cook

Jeremy Kirkwood						      Kitchen Assistant

Fa’ao’osala Lale						      Venue Host

Thomas Lister						      Facilities Assistant

Samanta Luzzi-King, BA					     Shop Manager

Kayla McFarlane						      Shop Assistant

Sophia McKenzie						      Venue Host

Levi Mennell						      Kitchen Assistant

Noelle Miles-Wilson					     Café Host
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Niamh Murfitt						      Venues Host

Jaz Nathan						      Café Host

Matthew Newton						      Facilities Officer

Christopher Patchett, DipGrad Sustainable Practice		  Facilities Manager

Portia Prescott						      Venues Host

Clare Rackley						      Café Host

Imogen Ramsay-Te Hauroa, Dip HospMgt			   Venue Officer

Pauline Richardson						      Café Host

Bronwyn Robson						      Assistant Café Cook

Juliet Saul						      Café Host

EJ Schmidt-Grant						      Venues Host

Andrew Spiegel						      Café Cook Supervisor

Brianna Stirling						      Venue Host

Jemma Swain						      Venue Host

Brian Templeton						      Café Host

Kerry Varcoe						      Café Manager

Meaghan Walsh						      Venues Host

Aliza Waterhouse						      Venue Host

Daniel West						      Café Host

Danika Wilkinson						      Venues Host

Ryley Wilson						      Shop Assistant

  
Marketing and Development 

Charlie Buchan, BCom					     Marketing Coordinator

Jack Buchan						      Marketing Assistant

Max Levitt-Campbell, BA, BCom				    Digital and Social Media Coordinator

Visitor Experience and Science Engagement 

Claire Acton Cleveland, BA, GDipArts, GDipTchg (ECE)		  Communicator

Kathleen Adams						      Communicator

Skyla Anderson-Wynn					     Kaiārahi

Jessica Barder, BA						      Science Engagement Manager

Lana Bolton-Marston, PGDipEng, DipGradArtHist			  Front of House Officer

Kerrin Bone						      Communicator

Chris Brooker, BEcot					     Science Communicator

Suzanne Caulton, Dip Craft Des				    Programmes and Events Coordinator

Merryn Chynoweth, BA (Hons)				    Museum Guide

Olivia Clare						      Kaiārahi

Octavia Cook, BDes					     Communicator

Natalia Costa Lopes, BA (Hons)				    Communicator

Lydia Dale Barrett						      Kaiārahi

Danica Davies, MHSc					     Science Communicator

Ada Duffy						      Communicator

Emily  Eastgate, BA (Hons) 					     Science Engagment Coordinator Pasifika

Samantha Edwards-Ingle, BSc, PGDipSci 			   Science Communicator

Amadeo Enriquez-Ballestero, PGDip				    Science Presentation Coordinator

Anna Farrelly-Rosch, BSc (Hons), MSciComm			   Senior Science Engagement Coordinator

Teresa Fogarty, PGDipMusMgt				    Visitor Experience Manager
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Jennifer Fogel						      Communicator

Leah Friend						      Communicator

Catriona Gower, MPhil					     Science Communicator

Helen Gregory, BASc, PGDipSciComm, NZCAC			   Science Communicator

Quinn Hawthorne, BDesComm				    Science Communicator

Tara Hegarty, BA 						      Communicator

Steven Hird, NVQ Museum Studies				    Museum Guide, Weekend Supervisor

Antonia Hoeta, MSc					     Science Engagement Coordinator Māori

Kate Irving, MSc						      Science Communicator

Oana Jones, BIT						      Full Dome Producer

Marijn Kouwenhoven, PhD					     Science Engagment Coordinator

Diana Lillo, BSc						      Science Communicator

Danielle Lomas, BAppSc, NatCert Horticulture 			   Gardner 

Rachel MacJeff, BFA					     Programme and Events Coordinator

Stephen Mathew, MSc					     Science Communicator

Emma McCoy, BA						      Communicator

Phoebe McKenzie, BA					     Communicator

Ross McKenzie						      Museum Guide

Andrew Mills, PhD						      Science Engagment Coordinator

Emma Morris, BA						      Museum Guide

Alice Morrison, BA						      Science Communicator

Clare Mulligan, BA						      Communicator

Ruby Parker, MSci						      Communicator

Ruth Platt, BSc (Hons), MSc					     Science Communicator

Alexia Preen						      Communicator

India Quedley						      Communicator

Katherine Richards, BSc, IntDes, Cert SciComm			   Communicator

Hannah Rourke, BA (Hons)					     Operations and Science Centre Manager

Hannah Schmierer						      Communicator

Sandra Sesto-Dekic, MA					     Science Centre Manager

George Sherring						      Communicator

Laura Simpson, BSc (Hons)					     Science Communicator

Colin Smillie, BA, PGDipSciComm 				    Science Communicator

Baylee Smith, BA (Hons)					     Communicator

Sophie Sparrow, PGDipWLM					     Science Engagment Coordinator

Ashley Stewart						      Museum Guide

Anthony Stumbo, PhD					     Tūhura & Living Environments Coordinator

Kelly Sweeney, BA (Hons)					     Operations Administrator 

Danielle Parke, PGDipSci					     Science Engagement Coordinator Māori

Olivia Taylor-Peebles, MSciComm				    Communicator

Cole Thompson, BASc					     Science Communicator

Elizabeth Vitali, PGDipArts					     Communicator

Te Wharau Walker						      Kaiārahi

Russell Walsh, PhD						      Communicator

Alice Waterman, LLB, BSc					     Museum Guide

Christine Wierda, BA					     Museum Guide
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OOTTAAGGOO  MMUUSSEEUUMM  TTRRUUSSTT  BBOOAARRDD
SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTT  OOFF  RREESSPPOONNSSIIBBIILLIITTYY
FFoorr  tthhee  FFiinnaanncciiaall  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  3300  JJuunnee  22002222

On behalf of the Otago Museum Trust Board

Chairperson

Board Member

Date

In our opinion, these financial statements and statement of performance fairly reflect the financial position and
operations of the Otago Museum Trust Board for the year ended 30 June 2022.

We have the responsibility for establishing and maintaining a system of internal controls designed to provide
reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of financial reporting.

We are responsible for the preparation of the Otago Museum Trust Board's financial statements and statement
of performance, and for the judgements made in them.
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OOTTAAGGOO  MMUUSSEEUUMM  TTRRUUSSTT  BBOOAARRDD
SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTT  OOFF  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  PPEERRFFOORRMMAANNCCEE
FFoorr  tthhee  FFiinnaanncciiaall  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  3300  JJuunnee  22002222

BBuuddggeett
NNootteess 22002222 22002222 22002211

$$000000 $$000000 $$000000
RReevveennuuee

Grants - Government & Other 1,296 988 1,173
COVID-19 Wage Subsidy 317 - 203
STAPP Funding 125 - 370
Local Authorities 4,753 4,783 4,812
Public 2,559 3,351 3,580
Legacies & Bequests 60 - -
Investment Revenue - Dividends 129 - 107

- Interest 92 217 64
Realised Net Gains/(Losses)  on Sale of Financial Instruments 16(a) (1) - (1)
Realised Net Gains/(Losses) on Sale of Fixed Assets 16(a) 46 - 7

TToottaall  RReevveennuuee 4 99,,337766 99,,333399 1100,,331155

EExxppeennddiittuurree

Employee Benefits Expense 5(a) (5,633) (5,565) (5,291)
Depreciation & Amortisation Expense (1,250) (1,270) (1,312)
Other Expenses 5(b) (3,343) (3,862) (3,821)

TToottaall  OOppeerraattiinngg  EExxppeennddiittuurree (10,226) (10,697) (10,424)

SSuurrpplluuss//((DDeeffiicciitt))  ffoorr  tthhee  yyeeaarr ((885500)) ((11,,335588)) ((110099))

The accompanying notes form an integrated part of these financial statements.

OOTTAAGGOO  MMUUSSEEUUMM  TTRRUUSSTT  BBOOAARRDD
SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTT  OOFF  OOTTHHEERR  CCOOMMPPRREEHHEENNSSIIVVEE  RREEVVEENNUUEE  &&  EEXXPPEENNSSEE
FFoorr  tthhee  FFiinnaanncciiaall  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  3300  JJuunnee  22002222

NNootteess 22002222 22002211
$$000000 $$000000

Surplus/(Deficit) for the year (850) (109)

OOtthheerr  CCoommpprreehheennssiivvee  RReevveennuuee  &&  EExxppeennssee

Available-for-sale financial assets - valuation gain/(loss) 16(a) (999) 1,154

TToottaall  CCoommpprreehheennssiivvee  RReevveennuuee  &&  EExxppeennssee  ffoorr  tthhee  YYeeaarr ((11,,884499)) 11,,004455

The above statement of financial performance & statement of comprehensive revenue & expenses should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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OOTTAAGGOO  MMUUSSEEUUMM  TTRRUUSSTT  BBOOAARRDD
SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTT  OOFF  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  PPOOSSIITTIIOONN
AAss  aatt  3300  JJuunnee  22002222

BBuuddggeett
NNootteess 22002222 22002222 22002211

CCuurrrreenntt  AAsssseettss $$000000 $$000000 $$000000

Cash & Cash Equivalents 21(a) 3,002 220 3,326
Trade & Other Receivables 8 242 228 320
Inventories 9 232 241 241
Other Financial Assets 10 1,121 3,493 3,493
Prepayments 199 170 170

TToottaall  CCuurrrreenntt  AAsssseettss 4,796 4,352 7,550

NNoonn--CCuurrrreenntt  AAsssseettss
Other Financial Assets 10 8,656 6,973 6,973
Property, Plant & Equipment 12 13,130 15,465 14,022
Capital Work in Progress 13 17 - -
Intangible Assets 13 20 - 39

TToottaall  NNoonn--CCuurrrreenntt  AAsssseettss 21,823 22,438 21,034

TToottaall  AAsssseettss 26,619 26,790 28,584

CCuurrrreenntt  LLiiaabbiilliittiieess
Payables (from Exchange Transactions) 14 1,087 786 1,221
Employee Benefit Liability 15 544 525 525

TToottaall  CCuurrrreenntt  LLiiaabbiilliittiieess 1,631 1,311 1,746

NNoonn--CCuurrrreenntt  LLiiaabbiilliittiieess
STAPP Loan 11 1,065 1,065 1,065

TToottaall  NNoonn--CCuurrrreenntt  LLiiaabbiilliittiieess 1,065 1,065 1,065

TToottaall  LLiiaabbiilliittiieess 2,696 2,376 2,811

NNeett  AAsssseettss 2233,,992233 2244,,441144 2255,,777722

EEqquuiittyy

Reserves 16 13,776 14,552 14,552
Accumulated Comprehensive Revenue and Expense 17 10,147 9,862 11,220

2233,,992233 2244,,441144 2255,,777722

The above statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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OOTTAAGGOO  MMUUSSEEUUMM  TTRRUUSSTT  BBOOAARRDD
SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTT  OOFF  CCHHAANNGGEESS  IINN  NNEETT  AASSSSEETTSS  //  EEQQUUIITTYY
FFoorr  tthhee  FFiinnaanncciiaall  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  3300  JJuunnee  22002222

BBuuddggeett
22002222 22002222 22002211
$$000000 $$000000 $$000000

Equity at Beginning of Year 25,772 25,772 24,726
Total Comprehensive Revenue & Expenses (1,849) (1,358) 1,045
EEqquuiittyy  aatt  EEnndd  ooff  YYeeaarr 2233,,992233 2244,,441144 2255,,777722

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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OOTTAAGGOO  MMUUSSEEUUMM  TTRRUUSSTT  BBOOAARRDD
SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTT  OOFF  CCAASSHH  FFLLOOWWSS
FFoorr  tthhee  FFiinnaanncciiaall  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  3300  JJuunnee  22002222

BBuuddggeett
NNootteess 22002222 22002222 22002211

$$000000 $$000000 $$000000

CCaasshh  FFlloowwss  ttoo//ffrroomm  OOppeerraattiinngg  AAccttiivviittiieess
Government, Local Authorities & the Public 9,122 9,088 10,409
Dividends Received 129 217 107
Interest Received 94 126 73
Payments to Employees (5,614) (5,565) (5,202)
Payments to Suppliers (3,416) (4,298) (3,913)
Net GST (17) - -

Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Operating Activities 297 (432) 1,474

CCaasshh  FFlloowwss  ttoo//ffrroomm  IInnvveessttiinngg  AAccttiivviittiieess
Proceeds from Maturity & Sale of other Financial Assets 2,755 - 51
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 26 - 5
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets (381) (2,674) (337)
Purchase of Other Financial Assets (3,021) - (1,776)

Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Investing Activities (621) (2,674) (2,057)

CCaasshh  FFlloowwss  ttoo//ffrroomm  FFiinnaanncciinngg  AAccttiivviittiieess
Proceeds from STAPP Funding - - 1,065

Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Financing Activities - - 1,065

NNeett  IInnccrreeaassee//((DDeeccrreeaassee))  iinn  CCaasshh  &&  CCaasshh ((332244)) ((33,,110066)) 448822
EEqquuiivvaalleennttss

CCaasshh  &&  CCaasshh  EEqquuiivvaalleennttss  aatt  tthhee  BBeeggiinnnniinngg  ooff
tthhee  FFiinnaanncciiaall  YYeeaarr 33,,332266 33,,332266 22,,884444

CCaasshh  &&  CCaasshh  EEqquuiivvaalleennttss  aatt  tthhee  EEnndd  ooff  tthhee
FFiinnaanncciiaall  YYeeaarr 21(a) 33,,000022 222200 33,,332266

The above cashflow statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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11..11  RReeppoorrttiinngg  EEnnttiittyy

11..22  SSttaatteemmeenntt  ooff  CCoommpplliiaannccee

11..33  BBaassiiss  ooff  PPrreeppaarraattiioonn

New Zealand dollars are the Museum’s functional and presentation currency.

11..44  SSiiggnniiffiiccaanntt  cchhaannggeess  iinn  tthhee  ccuurrrreenntt  rreeppoorrttiinngg  ppeerriioodd

The Otago Museum Trust Board (“the Museum”) is a special-purpose local authority constituted under the Otago Museum Trust Board Act,
1996. The Museum is a public benefit entity for the purposes of financial reporting in accordance with the Financial Reporting Act 2013.

The organisation receives a large portion of its funding from Council levies but also operates business units which are dependent on visitor
numbers and the purchase of admission fares. COVID-19 settings continued to significantly impact the Museum's operations and caused
significant business interruption.

As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic and the ongoing changes in Alert Levels and restrictions, the business and economic environment is
uncertain. Given the organisations balance sheet and the range of income streams, the Museum has some flexibility in the short term to
protect the business before considering longer term financial measures that may be required to its operational activities.

The Otago Museum Trust Board administers the Otago Museum which is a non-profit making permanent institution, founded by the people
of Otago for the service and development of their community with a particular responsibility for the natural and scientific heritage of the
Otago region. The Museum has designated itself as a public benefit entity (PBE) for reporting purposes.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with NZ GAAP. They comply with the Public Benefit Entity Standards Reduced
Disclosure Regime ("PBE Standards RDR") on the basis the Museum is not considered publicly accountable or large with expenditure under
$30 million in the current and prior period. All available disclosure concessions have been applied.

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Trustees on 28 October 2022. The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with PBE Standards RDR requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenue and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and in future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of historical cost, except for heritage assets and the revaluation of certain financial
instruments. Cost is based on the fair values of the consideration given in exchange for assets. Heritage assets are valued as per Note 1,
Property Plant and Equipment, Heritage Assets.

Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner which ensures that the resulting financial information satisfies the concepts of
relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that the substance of the underlying transactions or other events is reported.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, and the accounting policies set out below have been applied
consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements.

The following accounting policies which materially affect the measurement of results and financial position have been applied:

There were no transactions in the financial reporting period that significantly affected the organisation.
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11..55  CCrriittiiccaall  AAccccoouunnttiinngg  EEssttiimmaatteess  aanndd  AAssssuummppttiioonnss

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty include:

22..  SSIIGGNNIIFFIICCAANNTT  AACCCCOOUUNNTTIINNGG  PPOOLLIICCIIEESS

22..11  RReevveennuuee  RReeccooggnniittiioonn

Local Authority Levy Revenue

Local Authority Levy revenue is recognised when it is levied in accordance with when the levy grants are receivable.

Other Revenue

Non-exchange transactions are those where the Museum receives an inflow of resources (i.e. cash and other tangible or intangible items) but
provides no (or nominal) direct consideration in return. With the exception of services in kind, inflows of resources from non-exchange
transactions are only recognised as assets where both:

·       It is probable that the associated future economic benefit or service potential will flow to the entity, and

·       Fair value is reliably measurable.

·       Estimating the remaining useful life of various items of property, plant and equipment. If the useful life does not reflect the actual
consumption of benefits of the asset, the Museum could be over or under estimating the depreciation charge recognised as an expense in
the Statement of Financial Performance.

·       Determining whether the conditions of a grant has been satisfied, to determine whether the grant should be recognised as revenue in
the Statement of Financial Performance. This judgement will be based on the facts and circumstances that are evident for each contract.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other functions, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be measurable under the circumstances.

In preparing these financial statements, the Museum has made estimates and assumptions concerning the future. These estimates and
assumptions may differ from the subsequent actual results. Estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations or future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below.

The outbreak and spread of COVID-19 and the continued economic uncertainty has resulted in impacts to key estimates and judgements
used in these financial statements. These judgements and estimates are detailed within the following notes: 2.6 (a) (5); 2.8 (c)

Judgements made by management in the application of Tier 2 PBE accounting standards that have significant effects on the financial
statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustments in the next year are disclosed, where applicable, in the relevant
notes to the financial statements.

Grants are recognised as revenue when they become receivable unless there is an obligation in substance to return the funds if conditions of
the grant are not met. If there is such an obligation, the grants are initially recorded as grants received in advance and recognised as revenue
when conditions of the grant are satisfied.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and GST.

Revenue from services rendered is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
entity. The stage of completion at balance date is assessed based on the value of services performed to date as a percentage of the total
services to be performed.

9



81

OOTTAAGGOO  MMUUSSEEUUMM  TTRRUUSSTT  BBOOAARRDD
NNOOTTEESS  TTOO  TTHHEE  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTTSS
FFoorr  tthhee  FFiinnaanncciiaall  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  3300  JJuunnee  22002222

SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTT  OOFF  AACCCCOOUUNNTTIINNGG  PPOOLLIICCIIEESS  ((CCoonntt..))

Sale of Goods

Dividends are recognised when the entitlement to the dividends is established.

Interest revenue is recognised on an accrual basis.

22..22  LLeeaassiinngg

Operating Leases

22..33  TTaaxxaattiioonn

22..44  GGooooddss  aanndd  SSeerrvviicceess  TTaaxx

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed exclusive of GST.

22..55  CCaasshh  aanndd  CCaasshh  EEqquuiivvaalleennttss

The net GST paid to, or received from, the IRD, including the GST relating to investing and financing activities, is classified as a net operating
cash flow in the statement of cash flows.

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, and other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less.

The recognition of non-exchange revenue from Grants and Donations depends on the nature of any stipulations attached to the inflow of
resources received, and whether this creates a liability (i.e. present obligation) rather than the recognition of revenue. Stipulations that are
'conditions' specifically require the Museum to return the inflow of resources received if they are not utilised in the way stipulated, resulting
in the recognition of a non-exchange liability that is subsequently recognised as non-exchange revenue as and when the 'conditions' are
satisfied. Stipulations that are 'restrictions' do not specifically require the Museum to return the inflow of resources received if they are not
utilised in the way stipulated, and therefore do not result in the recognition of a non-exchange liability, which results in the immediate
recognition of the non-exchange revenue.

Revenue from the sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
net of returns and discounts. Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
customer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return of the goods can be estimated reliably, there is
no continuing management involvement with the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the IRD is included as part of receivables or payables in the statement of financial
position.

Payments made under these leases are recognised as expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Some services within the Museum are performed by volunteers. These volunteer services are not recognised as revenue or expenditure by
the Museum.

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the leased item are classified as
operating leases.

Lease incentives received are recognised in the surplus or deficit as a reduction of rental expense spread on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

The Museum is exempt from income tax in accordance with Section CW39 of the Income Tax Act 2007. Accordingly, no provision has been
made for income tax.

Revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except for receivables and
payables which are recognised inclusive of GST. Where GST is not recoverable as an input tax, it is recognised as part of the related asset or
expense.
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22..66  FFiinnaanncciiaall  IInnssttrruummeennttss

2.6 (a) Financial Assets

(1) Available-for-Sale Financial Assets

(2) Fair Value Estimation

(3) Foreign Currency

(4) Loans and Receivables

Equity securities held by the Museum are classified as being available-for-sale due to the fact that they are all tradeable on public markets
and are stated at fair value. Fair value is determined in the manner described later in this note. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair
value are recognised directly in the available-for-sale revaluation reserve, with the exception of impairment losses which are recognised
directly in the Statement of Financial Performance. Where the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain
or loss previously recognised in the available-for-sale revaluation reserve is included in the Statement of Financial Performance for the
period.

Trade receivables, loans and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market are
classified as ‘loans and receivables’. Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less
impairment. Interest is recognised by applying the effective interest rate.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance when the Museum’s right to
receive payments is established.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any provision for impairment. An allowance for doubtful debts is established when there is objective evidence that the Museum
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables. The amount of the allowance is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The
amount of the allowance is expensed in the Statement of Financial Performance.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the balance date. The quoted market
price used for financial assets held by the Museum is the current bid price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques. The Museum uses a
variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each balance date. Quoted market prices or
dealer quotes for similar instruments are used for long-term investment and debt instruments held.

Foreign currency transactions (including those for which forward exchange contracts are held) are translated into NZ dollars, being the
functional currency, using the spot exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the Museum’s surplus or deficit.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Museum’s Statement of Financial Position when the Museum becomes a party
to contractual provisions of the instrument. The Museum is party to financial instruments as part of its normal operations. These financial
instruments include cash and cash equivalents (including bank overdraft), trade and other receivables, other financial assets, trade and other
payables and borrowings. The relevant accounting policies are stated under separate headings.

Investments are recognised and derecognised on trade date where purchase or sale of an investment is under a contract whose terms
require delivery of the investment within the timeframe established by the market concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, net of
transaction costs, except for those financial assets classified as fair value through profit or loss which are initially valued at fair value.

Financial Assets are classified into the following specified categories: ‘available-for-sale’, and ‘loans and receivables’. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

The effective interest method, referred to below, is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
revenue over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the interest rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.
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(5) Impairment of Financial Assets

2.6 (b) Amortised Cost Financial Liabilities

(1) Trade and Other Payables

22..77  IInnvveennttoorriieess

22..88  PPrrooppeerrttyy,,  PPllaanntt  aanndd  EEqquuiippmmeenntt

The Museum has the following classes of property, plant and equipment:

- Operational Assets
- Heritage Assets

22..88  ((aa))  OOppeerraattiioonnaall  AAsssseettss

Cost/Valuation

Property, plant and equipment is recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation.

Inventories acquired through non-exchange transactions are measured at fair value at the date of acquisition.

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis with an appropriate
allowance for obsolescence and deterioration.

The Museum has considered the potential impact of COVID-19 as part of its impairment testing of assets on its statement of financial
position. Because of the range of income streams and as a significant portion of revenue is not dependent on trading activities, there has
been limited impact of the Governments response to COVID-19 on the organisation.

Financial liabilities classified as amortised cost are non-derivative financial liabilities that are not classified as fair value through surplus or
deficit financial liabilities. Financial liabilities classed as amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Financial Liabilities classified as amortised cost comprise payables and loans.

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each Statement of Financial
Position date. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been impacted. For financial assets carried at
amortised cost, the amount of the impairment is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Operational assets include land, buildings, plant and equipment, motor vehicles, office furniture and equipment.

Trade payables and other accounts payable are recognised when the Museum becomes obliged to make future payments resulting from the
purchase of goods and services.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a trade receivable is uncollectable, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

With the exception of available-for-sale equity instruments, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through the Statement of Financial Performance to the extent the carrying amount of the investment at the date of impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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Additions

Depreciation

OOppeerraattiioonnaall  AAsssseettss RRaattee
Land Nil
Buildings 3% S.L. - 50% D.V.
Café Equipment 8% - 50% D.V.
Computer Equipment 8% - 67% D.V.
Emergency Response Team Equipment 3% S.L. - 18% D.V.
Exhibits Nil - 50% D.V.
Furniture, Fittings & Equipment Nil - 67% D.V.
Golden Kiwi Lottery Fund Equipment 3% S.L. - 18% D.V.
Motor Vehicles 30% D.V.
Equipment 8% - 67% D.V.

Security and Restrictions

Disposal

22..88  ((bb))  HHeerriittaaggee  AAsssseettss

Work in progress is recognised at cost less impairment and is not depreciated. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the assets. In most instances, an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised at cost. Where an asset is acquired
through a non-exchange transaction, or for a nominal cost, it is recognised at fair value at the date of acquisition.

There are no property, plant and equipment with restrictions to title, nor pledged as security, over the Group's liabilities (2020: nil).

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset only when it is probable that future economic benefits or
service potential associated with the item will flow to the Museum and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Depreciation is calculated as detailed below. Expenditure incurred to maintain these assets at full operating capability is charged to the
Statement of Financial Performance in the year incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or recognised as impaired when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.

Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Financial Performance in the period the asset is derecognised.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period.

The Otago Museum has been collecting items from nature, culture and science since its inception in 1868. As defined by the Otago Museum
Trust Board Act 1996, the Otago Museum is legislated to collect and preserve material and information relating to the natural, cultural, and
scientific heritage of the peoples of the world; to promote interest and education in the natural, cultural and scientific heritage of New
Zealanders; and to place particular emphasis on those activities as they relate to the greater Otago region.

There are an estimated 1.5 million items within the collections, held in trust for the benefit of the people of Otago, New Zealand and the
world. The Museum holds some of the largest and most extensive collections of taoka Māori and Pacific items in the world. There are
comprehensive collections from South-East Asia, Australia, the Americas and Africa as well as extensive collections of costumes and textiles,
coins and medals, antiquities and the decorative arts. Within the natural sciences the Museum houses rich and diverse collections of
invertebrate, vertebrate and geological material. Highlights include over 1,000 type specimens, one of the largest New Zealand spider and
New Zealand lepidoptera collections and one of the most comprehensive collections of Moa specimens anywhere in the world. Indeed, all
Museum collections encompass items of national and international significance.

The Museum collections provide irreplaceable references, or records, against which we are constantly building and modifying our knowledge
and understanding of our natural and cultural worlds. They represent a vital part of our nation’s heritage and play an integral role in the
international scientific accord to document our world. Embedded with ancestral spirit and connection, taonga provide a tangible link with
our past and are important for relaying our past into the future.

The value of the heritage assets has been accounted for as follows:

Assets acquired prior to 30 June 2001:
          - Purchases are recognised at cost at the date of acquisition
          - Donated items have not been purchased and therefore their cost will be $nil

Assets acquired from 1 July 2001, and where it is possible, practical and meaningful:
          - Purchases are recognised at cost at the date of acquisition when paid from general cash reserves and are added to the fixed asset
schedule if the purchase is material. A material purchase is one exceeding $1,000
          - When assets have been purchased using Special & Trust Funds the asset is expensed through Special & Trust Funds
          - Donated items have not been purchased and therefore their cost will be $nil
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Since 2016, the accounting standards require donated assets to be recognised at fair value and the difference between cost and fair value
recognised as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance. A fair value for donated assets received has not been determined for all
donated assets as it was not considered possible or practical to value them.

As the vast majority of the Museum's collection was obtained prior to 30 June 2001, the result of this policy means that for accounting
purposes the heritage assets are effectively valued at nil, or at historical cost for those few items purchased.

The Museum has an insurance cover of fine arts (Which forms part of heritage collection assets) up to the value of $20 million dollars.
However, this provides a blanket coverage and does not represent the valuation of heritage collection assets on an asset by asset basis or an
overall basis. The Otago Museum Trust Board accepts that in the event of a natural disaster many of the heritage assets can’t be replaced so
any insurance fund is there for acquisition of a new collection. The Museum collection is housed across six connected buildings and an off-
site store.

Because of the size and nature of the Museum's collection it is impracticable and cost prohibitive to value the heritage assets on a "Market
Based" or "Depreciated Replacement Cost” basis. As a consequence, the Museum's collection is undervalued in these financial statements.

The Museum considers that Heritage collections assets are inherently difficult, if not impossible, to value and therefore not capable of being
reliably measured for the reasons including the following:
          - The full social, cultural, scientific or historical value to the Museum and the Otago community cannot be practically measured and
therefore will not be reflected in the financial value.

          - The value for scientific research and educational purposes can take time to accumulate and may not be known for years to come.

          - Each collection item is unique in that it was collected at a particular time and is from a specific location which cannot therefore be
replicated. The bulk of the Museum’s collection is therefore represented by unrealisable or irreplaceable items.

          - There is an intangible value derived through the receiving of assets from donors and their families which can create a long-term
relationship between the museum and successive generations of families. The gesture of trust and goodwill is not easily quantifiable in
financial terms.

          - Valuing a collection of items (for example a collection of 30 jewel beetles) may have different accumulated value to that of an
individual item (a single beetle). The concept of value of “the whole” rather than “the parts” is fluid depending on the needs and views of
those researching or enjoying the collections.

          - Heritage collection assets are often donated or bequeathed based on specific requests or wishes contained in a will or Trust Deed.
They are potentially encumbered with legal or ethical constraints and liquidating or realising their value may be constrained for this reason.
This potentially restricts their financial value but is hard to quantify.

          - There may be restrictions on selling items for cultural or religious reasons and determining a fair value for these items is difficult when
there is no comparable market to value against.

          - In many cases the useful value lies in the associations, contexts and histories attached to objects. An item which is supported with
robust research and documentation may have a different value to an item that does not; the value of items held by a Museum in one region
may have a different value because of the association with that region. The value of an item may change as new research is undertaken. In
such cases the item itself has not changed but its significance and therefore its value may have. Determining and tracking change in
intellectual value would be near impossible across a collection of millions of items.

          - Many collection items hold cultural value which is based on individual or community associations. In many cultures it can be offensive
to try to assign financial value to these very personal relationships. Taonga associated with, or embodying, ancestors have a sacred quality
which is both difficult to quantify in financial terms and in some cases doing so offends the mana and intrinsic value of the items concerned.

          - Application of the concept of ‘useful life’ commonly applied to assets may not be inappropriate as items can be entrusted to a
Museum in perpetuity. In addition, the curatorship of the asset, and attention to care and storage provided by a Museum, may extend the
life of the heritage asset.

          - Financial treatment of assets is largely based on the asset generating future economic benefits and revenue streams to produce
wealth. Over time financial assets are “used up” and their ability to produce revenue declines. This reduces the value of the asset. Arguably
museum collections gain in value with age which runs counter to the overall assumptions with regard to other assets. However, determining
the increase in value is difficult when considering all the above factors as well as the unpredictable patterns of social, political and natural
events.
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22..88  ((cc))  IImmppaaiirrmmeenntt  ooff  NNoonn--FFiinnaanncciiaall  AAsssseettss

22..99  SSuuppeerraannnnuuaattiioonn  SScchheemmeess

Defined Contribution Schemes

22..1100  PPrroovviissiioonnss

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution superannuation schemes are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Financial
Performance as incurred.

Provisions are recognised when the Museum has a present obligation, the future sacrifice of economic benefits is probable, and the amount
of the provision can be measured reliably.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at reporting date,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to
settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is
recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that recovery will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

The Museum has considered the potential impact of COVID-19 as part of its impairment testing of assets on its statement of financial
position. Because of the range of income streams and as a significant portion of revenue is not dependent on trading activities, there has
been limited impact of the Governments response to COVID-19 on the organisation.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately, unless the
relevant asset is carried at fair value, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but only to the extent that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at fair value, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

At each reporting date, the Museum reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from
other assets, the Museum estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Value in use is depreciated replacement cost for an asset
where the future economic benefits or service potential of the asset is not primarily dependent on the asset’s ability to generate net cash
inflows and where the entity would, if deprived of the asset, replace its remaining future economic benefits or service potential. In assessing
value in use for cash-generating assets, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.
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OOTTAAGGOO  MMUUSSEEUUMM  TTRRUUSSTT  BBOOAARRDD
NNOOTTEESS  TTOO  TTHHEE  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTTSS
FFoorr  tthhee  FFiinnaanncciiaall  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  3300  JJuunnee  22002222

SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTT  OOFF  AACCCCOOUUNNTTIINNGG  PPOOLLIICCIIEESS  ((CCoonntt..))

22..1111  EEmmppllooyyeeee  EEnnttiittlleemmeennttss

22..1122  SSttaatteemmeenntt  ooff  CCaasshh  FFlloowwss

Financing activities comprise the change in equity and debt structure of the Museum.

22..1133  EEqquuiittyy

·            Museum Capital Account
·            Accumulated Surplus/(Deficit)
·            Available-for-Sale Revaluation Reserve
·            Equalisation Fund
·            Redevelopment Fund
·            Special & Trust Funds

22..1144  RReesseerrvveess

The Museum’s objectives, policies and processes for managing capital are described in Note 20.

22..1155  BBuuddggeett  FFiigguurreess

22..1166  RRoouunnddiinngg

All values are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($000).

Museum reserves are reserves established by Museum decision. The Museum may alter them without reference to any third party.
Expenditure or transfers to and from these reserves is based on established Museum policy.

The budget figures are those approved by the Museum at the beginning of the year in the Annual Plan. The budget figures have been
prepared in accordance with NZ GAAP, using accounting policies that are consistent with those adopted by the Museum for the preparation
of the financial statements.

The components of equity are:

Reserves are a component of equity generally representing a particular use to which various parts of equity have been assigned. Reserves
may be legally restricted or established by the Museum.

Provision is made for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, and annual leave when it is probable that settlement
will be required and they are capable of being measured reliably.

Employee benefits that are due to be settled within 12 months after balance date are measured based on the accrued entitlements at
current rates of pay.

A liability and an expense are recognised for bonuses where there is a contractual obligation or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Provisions made in respect of employee benefits which are not expected to be settled within 12 months are measured at the present value
of the estimated future cash outflows to be made by the Museum in respect of services provided by employees up to reporting date.

Investing activities are those activities relating to the acquisition and disposal of non-current assets.

Operating activities include cash received from all revenue sources of the Museum and record the cash payments made for the supply of
goods and services.

Equity is the community’s interest in the Museum and is measured as total assets less total liabilities. Equity is disaggregated and classified
into Museum Capital and a number of reserves.

Restricted reserves are subject to specific conditions. Expenditure or transfers from these reserves may be made only for certain specified
purposes.
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OOTTAAGGOO  MMUUSSEEUUMM  TTRRUUSSTT  BBOOAARRDD
NNOOTTEESS  TTOO  TTHHEE  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTTSS
FFoorr  tthhee  FFiinnaanncciiaall  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  3300  JJuunnee  22002222

SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTT  OOFF  AACCCCOOUUNNTTIINNGG  PPOOLLIICCIIEESS  ((CCoonntt..))

22..1177  CChhaannggeess  iinn  AAccccoouunnttiinngg  PPoolliiccyy

33..  CCOOVVIIDD--1199

Otago Museum has considered the impact of COVID-19: (1) in respect of its status as a going concern; (2) as part of its impairment testing of
assets on its statement of financial position; and (3) in its critical accounting judgements and estimates. These are detailed in this and the
following sections.

(a) There were no changes in accounting policy.

On 11 March 2020, the World Health Organisation declared a global pandemic as a result of the outbreak and spread of COVID-19. Over the
last two years, COVID-19 has continued to cause business interruption to the trading activities of the Museum.

During the 2022 year, the country moved through various Alert Levels, with restrictions in place that impacted the way the Museum could
operate. Social distancing requirements limited the number of people able to utilise the facilities. The international borders remained closed,
which resulted in the continuing decrease in visitor numbers. This had a significant impact on commercial operations, including the
planetarium, cafe, Tuhura and the activities hosted by the venues division.

17



89

OOTTAAGGOO  MMUUSSEEUUMM  TTRRUUSSTT  BBOOAARRDD
NNOOTTEESS  TTOO  TTHHEE  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTTSS  ((CCoonntt..))
FFoorr  tthhee  FFiinnaanncciiaall  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  3300  JJuunnee  22002222

44.. RREEVVEENNUUEE

Included within Public revenue are the following non-exchange transactions:

22002222 22002211
$$000000 $$000000

Donations 15 36
15 36

55.. EEXXPPEENNDDIITTUURREE

22002222 22002211
$$000000 $$000000

((aa)) EEmmppllooyyeeee  BBeenneeffiittss  EExxppeennssee

Salaries & Wages 5,479 5,150
Defined Contribution Plans 155 142

5,633 5,291

((bb)) OOtthheerr  EExxppeennsseess

Advertising 111 78
Computer Costs 58 53
Cost of Goods Sold 196 223
Insurance 307 275
IT Support 151 151
Maintenance 141 151
Masterplan Costs 11 306
Other Expenses 2,368 2,585

3,343 3,821

66.. KKEEYY  MMAANNAAGGEEMMEENNTT  PPEERRSSOONNNNEELL  CCOOMMPPEENNSSAATTIIOONN

22002222 22002211
$$000000 $$000000

Short-Term Employee Benefits 833 814
Other Benefits - -

833 814

Trust Board Members 0.04 0.04
Museum Management Team 5 5

5.04 5.04

For financial reporting purposes, revenue received from local authorities in regards to payments under the Otago Museum Trust Board Act
1996 is considered non-exchange revenue. These amount to $4,753,076 in 2022 (2021: $4,812,458). Legacies & Bequests, Interest &
Dividends, as well as Grants – Government & Other are also considered non-exchange revenue.

Key management personnel include Trust Board Members, the Chief Executive and other members of the Museum Management Team.
With the exception of the Chairperson of the Board who receives a small honorarium, other Trust Board members do not receive any
remuneration.

The full-time equivalent of key management personnel receiving remuneration is detailed below:
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OOTTAAGGOO  MMUUSSEEUUMM  TTRRUUSSTT  BBOOAARRDD
NNOOTTEESS  TTOO  TTHHEE  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTTSS  ((CCoonntt..))
FFoorr  tthhee  FFiinnaanncciiaall  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  3300  JJuunnee  22002222

77.. RREEMMUUNNEERRAATTIIOONN  OOFF  AAUUDDIITTOORRSS
22002222 22002211
$$000000 $$000000

Audit Fees for Financial Statement Audit 36 33

88.. TTRRAADDEE  &&  OOTTHHEERR  RREECCEEIIVVAABBLLEESS

22002222 22002211
(a) Trade & Other Receivables $$000000 $$000000

Trade Receivables 213 250
Sundry Receivables & Accruals 25 70
GST Receivable 4 -
Estimated Doubtful Debts - -

242 320

(b) The following are recognised as non-exchange transactions:

Grants Receivable - 75
- 75

All other trade & other receivables are considered as exchange transactions.

99.. IINNVVEENNTTOORRIIEESS
22002222 22002211
$$000000 $$000000

Shop Stock 220 225
Café Stock 8 8
Venue Stock 4 8

232 241

The carrying amount of inventories pledged as security for liabilities is $Nil (2021: $Nil).

The Museum holds no collateral as security or other credit enhancements over receivables that are either past due or impaired.
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OOTTAAGGOO  MMUUSSEEUUMM  TTRRUUSSTT  BBOOAARRDD
NNOOTTEESS  TTOO  TTHHEE  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTTSS  ((CCoonntt..))
FFoorr  tthhee  FFiinnaanncciiaall  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  3300  JJuunnee  22002222

1100.. OOTTHHEERR  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  AASSSSEETTSS
22002222 22002211

Available-for-Sale at Fair Value: $$000000 $$000000
Current
Deposits 1,121 3,493
Fixed Rate Bonds - -

1,121 3,493

Non-Current
Equity Securities- Company Shares 8,134 6,464
Fixed Rate Bonds 522 509

8,656 6,973

Disclosed in the financial statements as:
Current 1,121 3,493
Non-current 8,656 6,973

9,777 10,466

There are no impairment provisions for other financial assets.

1111.. LLOOAANNSS

CCuurrrreenntt NNoonn--CCuurrrreenntt CCuurrrreenntt NNoonn--CCuurrrreenntt
$$000000 $$000000 $$000000 $$000000

MBIE STAPP Loan 3.0% 2026 - 1,065 - 1,065

- 1,065 - 1,065

(i) Security Held

The MBIE STAPP Loan is unsecured.

(ii) Defaults and Breaches at Reporting Date

There were no defaults or breaches at reporting date.

(iii) Loan Forgiveness

During the period, no portion of the loan was forgiven.

For accounting policy, please refer to note 2.6(b).

The Strategic Tourism Asset Protection Programme (STAPP) loan was received in May 2021 and is repayable within five years. The loan is
interest free for the first 24 months (May 2023), after which interest will be charged at 3%.

22002222 22002211EEffffeeccttiivvee
IInntteerreesstt  RRaattee

YYeeaarr  ooff
MMaattuurriittyy

Equity securities and fixed rate bonds are held in the name of Otago Museum Trust Board. Equity investments are measured at fair value
with fair value determined by reference to published bid price quotations in an active market.

All banking activities relating to these Other Financial Assets are conducted by the Otago Museum Trust Board through its bank account.
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OOTTAAGGOO  MMUUSSEEUUMM  TTRRUUSSTT  BBOOAARRDD
NNOOTTEESS  TTOO  TTHHEE  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTTSS  ((CCoonntt..))
FFoorr  tthhee  FFiinnaanncciiaall  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  3300  JJuunnee  22002222

22002222 22002211
$$000000 $$000000

1133.. IINNTTAANNGGIIBBLLEE  AASSSSEETTSS  &&  CCAAPPIITTAALL  WWOORRKK  IINN  PPRROOGGRREESSSS

IInnttaannggiibbllee  AAsssseettss

Opening Balance 39 3
Additions 1 41
Less Amortisation 21 5
Closing Balance 20 39

Website design costs are capitalised and amortised at 50%DV.

CCaappiittaall  WWoorrkk  iinn  PPrrooggrreessss 17 -

1144.. TTRRAADDEE  &&  OOTTHHEERR  PPAAYYAABBLLEESS

Trade Payables (i) 288 335
Accrued Expenses 49 59
Income Received in Advance (ii) 750 805
GST Payable - 23

1,087 1,221

(i) The average credit period on purchases is 30 days.

(ii)

22002222 22002211
1155.. EEMMPPLLOOYYEEEE  EENNTTIITTLLEEMMEENNTTSS $$000000 $$000000

Accrued Salary & Wages 171 155
Annual Leave 373 370

544 525

1166.. RREESSEERRVVEESS

Available-for-Sale Revaluation Reserve (a) 2,358 3,357
Equalisation Fund (b) 349 342
Trust Funds (c) 6,660 6,503
Special Funds (d) 4,399 4,339
Unallocated Accrued Interest 10 11

13,776 14,552

((aa))  AAvvaaiillaabbllee--ffoorr--SSaallee  RReevvaalluuaattiioonn  RReesseerrvvee
Balance at Beginning of Year 3,357 2,203

Realised gains/losses on disposal of financial instruments (1) (1)
Realised gains/losses on disposal of equities 46 7
Adjusting for market value movements (999) 1,154
Valuation Gain/(Loss) Recognised (954) 1,160

(Gain)/Loss transferred to Revenue Statement on Sale of
Financial Instruments 1 1
Equities (46) (7)
Balance at End of Year 2,358 3,357

The work in progress balance contains costs put towards capital projects that are during the
construction phase and are yet to be completed.

The Museum holds unspent grant funding received, included in cash & cash equivalents, of $783,545
(2021: $804,505) that is subject to conditions. The restrictions generally specify how the grant is
required to be spent providing specified deliverables of the grant arrangement, including repayment
of unspent funding. This grant funding is considered a non-exchange transaction.

The available-for-sale revaluation reserve represents gains (net) on revaluation of financial assets held.
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OOTTAAGGOO  MMUUSSEEUUMM  TTRRUUSSTT  BBOOAARRDD
NNOOTTEESS  TTOO  TTHHEE  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTTSS  ((CCoonntt..))
FFoorr  tthhee  FFiinnaanncciiaall  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  3300  JJuunnee  22002222

1166.. RREESSEERRVVEESS  ccoonntt..

22002222 22002211
$$000000 $$000000

((bb))  EEqquuaalliissaattiioonn  FFuunndd
Balance at Beginning of Year 342 337
Interest Transfer 7 5
Balance at End of Year 349 342

NNootteess

((cc))  TTrruusstt  FFuunnddss  ((RReessttrriicctteedd  &&  UUnnrreessttrriicctteedd  RReesseerrvveess)) 14(e)

Balance at Beginning of Year 6,503 6,402

Transfer from/(to) Retained Earnings 157 101

Balance at End of Year 6,660 6,503

NNootteess 22002222 22002211
$$000000 $$000000

((dd))  SSppeecciiaall  FFuunnddss  ((MMuusseeuumm  RReesseerrvveess)) 14(f)

Balance at Beginning of Year 4,339 4,339

Transfer from/(to) Retained Earnings 60 -

Balance at End of Year 4,399 4,339

Special Funds are funds the Board have agreed to allocate for a specific purpose and have come into existence
due to passing of various Board resolutions over time. Special Funds are different from Trust Funds in that they
do not require a formal Board resolution. The Director is able to authorise expenditure as long as it is in line
with the purpose of the fund, and within his delegated authority.  The Director then notes and reports this
spending at the subsequent Audit, Finance & Risk Committee (AFRM) and Board meetings.

A fund established to enable the board to handle expenditure on major maintenance projects which occur
irregularly.

Trust Funds are funds received by gift, bequest or donations of significant sizes and their purpose and use is
directed by a Trust Deed or Will. Spending of Trust Fund money is authorised by way of Board resolution.
Where it is not practical to get approval via Board resolution prior to purchase that approval in principle can be
gained via email to the Audit, Finance & Risk Committee (AFRM), within designated limits, with full ratification
and reporting at subsequent AFRM and Board meetings.
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OTAGO MUSEUM TRUST BOARD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.)
For the Financial year ended 30 June 2022

1166  ((ee)) TTrruusstt  FFuunnddss

((ii))  TTrruusstt  FFuunnddss  --  UUnnrreessttrriicctteedd

BBaallaannccee BBaallaannccee CCaappiittaall RReevveennuuee
FFuunndd 11//0077//22002211 3300//0066//22002222

DDeettaaiill $$ DDeettaaiill $$

Elizabeth Alexander 194 Gain on Sale of Shares 1 199 88 112

Investment Revenue 4

De Beer Publications & Research 1,430 Gain on Sale of Shares 10 1,468 373 1,096

Investment Revenue 28

Fairweather 400 Gain on Sale of Shares 3 Purchases - Textiles 1 410 142 268

Investment Revenue 8

Gollan 256 Gain on Sale of Shares 2
Purchases - Jewellery &
Textiles

6 257 42 215

Investment Revenue 5

Brenda Joyce Harding 134 Gain on Sale of Shares 1 137 40 97

Investment Revenue 3

Lyders 232 Gain on Sale of Shares 2
Purchases - Jewellery &
Ceramics

5 234 40 194

Investment Revenue 5

Peter Snow MAC Fund 1 Gain on Sale of Shares 1 1

Investment Revenue

TToottaall 22,,664488 7711 1122 22,,770077 772255 11,,998833

((iiii))  TTrruusstt  FFuunnddss  --  RReessttrriicctteedd

BBaallaannccee BBaallaannccee CCaappiittaall RReevveennuuee
FFuunndd 11//0077//22002211 3300//0066//22002222

DDeettaaiill $$ DDeettaaiill $$

Beth & Mark Anderson 116 Gain on Sale of Shares 1 119 75 44

Investment Revenue 2

Avice Bowbyes - Costumes 242 Gain on Sale of Shares 2 248 69 180

Investment Revenue 5

Colquhoun 610 Gain on Sale of Shares 4 626 174 452

Investment Revenue 12

Fairweather - Collections 644 Gain on Sale of Shares 5 Purchases - Textiles 3 659 200 459

Investment Revenue 13

Cowie Nichols 28 Gain on Sale of Shares 29 3 26

Investment Revenue 1

Cyril Nichols 1,240 Gain on Sale of Shares 9 1,273 223 1,050

Investment Revenue 25

Willi Fels 975 Gain on Sale of Shares 7 Purchases - Textiles 2 999 255 744

Investment Revenue 19

TToottaall 33,,885555 110033 55 33,,995533 999977 22,,995566

TTOOTTAALL  TTRRUUSSTT  FFUUNNDDSS 66,,550033 117744 1177 66,,666600 11,,772211 44,,993399

DDeedduucctt
EExxppeennddiittuurree  &&  TTrraannssffeerrss

AAdddd  RReevveennuuee  &&
TTrraannssffeerrss

DDeedduucctt
EExxppeennddiittuurree  &&  TTrraannssffeerrss

AAdddd  RReevveennuuee  &&
TTrraannssffeerrss
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OTAGO MUSEUM TRUST BOARD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.)
For the Financial year ended 30 June 2022

1166  ((ff))

((ii))  SSppeecciiaall  FFuunnddss  --  UUnnrreessttrriicctteedd

BBaallaannccee BBaallaannccee CCaappiittaall RReevveennuuee
FFuunndd 11//0077//22002211 3300//0066//22002222

DDeettaaiill $$000000 DDeettaaiill $$000000

54 Est. E.O. Naylor - 54 54

Barclay - Donation 60 60 60

Development - - -

Loss of Heart Compensation 2,349 2,349 1,107 1,242

General Funds 284 284 284

Conservation Materials 145 145 145

Emergency Response 48 48 48

Freda Stucky 271 271 271

Māori Ethnology 106 106 106

Purchase of Collections 80 80 80

Scientific Publications 75 75 75

Special Exhibitions & Programmes 348 348 348

Study & Training 82 82 82

Project & Development Fund 427 427 427

Retirement Leave 70 70 70

TToottaall 44,,333399 6600 44,,339999 11,,110077 33,,229922

Allocation for Special Purposes

DDeedduucctt
EExxppeennddiittuurree  &&  TTrraannssffeerrss

AAdddd  RReevveennuuee  &&
TTrraannssffeerrss
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OOTTAAGGOO  MMUUSSEEUUMM  TTRRUUSSTT  BBOOAARRDD
NNOOTTEESS  TTOO  TTHHEE  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTTSS  ((CCoonntt..))
FFoorr  tthhee  FFiinnaanncciiaall  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  3300  JJuunnee  22002222

22002222 22002211
$$000000 $$000000

1177.. CCAAPPIITTAALL

AAccccuummuullaatteedd  SSuurrpplluuss//((DDeeffiicciitt))

Balance at Beginning of Year 11,220 11,425

Plus Exhibits & Equipment Purchased:
Restricted & Museum Reserves 17 7

Net surplus/(Deficit) (850) (109)

TTrraannssffeerrss  ffrroomm//((ttoo))  RReesseerrvveess::
Restricted & Museum Reserves - -
Equalisation Fund (7) (5)
Restricted Reserves (Special Funds) (60) -
Restricted Reserves (Trust Funds) (174) (107)
Unallocated Accrued Interest 1 9

Balance at End of Year 10,147 11,220

1188.. CCOOMMMMIITTMMEENNTTSS  FFOORR  EEXXPPEENNDDIITTUURREE

((aa)) CCaappiittaall  &&  OOtthheerr  EExxppeennddiittuurree  CCoommmmiittmmeennttss

((bb)) OOppeerraattiinngg  CCoommmmiittmmeennttss

22002222 22002211
$$000000 $$000000

No later than one year 13 12
Later than one year and no later than 5 years 64 60
Later than 5 years 193 210

Total Operating Lease Commitments 270 282

Capital commitments at 30 June 2022 were Nil (30 June 2021: $53,579).

At 30 June 2022, the Otago Museum had been awarded total grant funding from the Ministry of Business
Innovation and Employment (MBIE) of $3,045,730 (2021: $2,691,730). To date costs of $2,800,576 (2021:
$2,399,457) had been paid out to funding recipients, with $401,118 of these costs paid during the 2022
year. There are $75,000 (2021: $75,000) to be received from MBIE. As at balance date, there were funds of
$170,154 (2021: $217,273) to be paid during 2022. There is also a further $245,154 (2021: $292,273) of
committed grant expenditure that has been awarded but not yet spent.

The Otago Museum Trust Board holds a lease for the H D Skinner Annex building located on the Museum
Reserve.
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OOTTAAGGOO  MMUUSSEEUUMM  TTRRUUSSTT  BBOOAARRDD
NNOOTTEESS  TTOO  TTHHEE  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTTSS  ((CCoonntt..))
FFoorr  tthhee  FFiinnaanncciiaall  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  3300  JJuunnee  22002222

1199.. CCOONNTTIINNGGEENNTT  LLIIAABBIILLIITTIIEESS  &&  CCOONNTTIINNGGEENNTT  AASSSSEETTSS

CCoonnttiinnggeenntt  LLiiaabbiilliittiieess

CCoonnttiinnggeenntt  AAsssseettss

2200.. RREELLAATTEEDD  PPAARRTTYY  DDIISSCCLLOOSSUURREESS

CCoonnttrriibbuuttiinngg  LLooccaall  AAuutthhoorriittiieess

TTrraannssaaccttiioonnss  wwiitthh  RReellaatteedd  PPaarrttiieess

22002222 22002211
$$000000 $$000000

Central Otago District Council Levy Received 32 31
Clutha District Council Levy Received 210 210
Dunedin City Council Levy Received 4,452 4,452
Waitaki District Council Levy Received 60 60
Queenstown Lakes District Council Levy Received - 60
Dunedin City Council Other 46 24
Friends of the Museum Association Other 2 1
Otago University Other 221 104

5,023 4,942

Dunedin City Council Rates 75 100
Dunedin City Council Other 13 5
Hutchinson Analytics Ltd Other - 5
Otago University Other 40 20

128 130

Under the Otago Museum Trust Board Act 1996, contributing authorities are required to provide certain
levels of funding to the Otago Museum.

During the year the following receipts (payments) were received from (made to) contributing authorities
and other related customers/suppliers. These were conducted on normal commercial terms, with the
exception of rent charged for the H D Skinner Annex Building.

There were no contingent liabilities at 30 June, 2022 (2021: Nil)

There were no contingent assets at 30 June, 2022 (2021: Nil)

The Clutha District Council continue to calculate their levy differently from the method agreed with the
other local authorities. Under the Otago Museum Trust Board Act 1996, the shortfall in this levy payment
has to be met by the Dunedin City Council.
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OOTTAAGGOO  MMUUSSEEUUMM  TTRRUUSSTT  BBOOAARRDD
NNOOTTEESS  TTOO  TTHHEE  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTTSS  ((CCoonntt..))
FFoorr  tthhee  FFiinnaanncciiaall  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  3300  JJuunnee  22002222

22002222 22002211
$$000000 $$000000

David Hutchinson - (14)
- (14)

2211.. NNOOTTEESS  TTOO  TTHHEE  CCAASSHH  FFLLOOWW  SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTT

((aa)) RReeccoonncciilliiaattiioonn  ooff  CCaasshh  &&  CCaasshh  EEqquuiivvaalleennttss

22002222 22002211
$$000000 $$000000

Cash & Cash Equivalents 3,002 3,326
3,002 3,326

2222.. FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  IINNSSTTRRUUMMEENNTTSS

((aa)) CCaatteeggoorriieess  ooff  FFiinnaanncciiaall  IInnssttrruummeennttss
22002222 22002211
$$000000 $$000000

FFiinnaanncciiaall  AAsssseettss

LLooaannss  aanndd  RReecceeiivvaabblleess
Cash & Cash Equivalents 3,002 3,326
Trade & Other Receivables 242 320
Other Financial Assets:
·      Term Deposits 1,121 3,493

HHeelldd  ttoo  MMaattuurriittyy
Listed Bonds 522 509

FFaaiirr  VVaalluuee  TThhrroouugghh  OOtthheerr  RReevveennuuee  aanndd  EExxppeennssee
Other Financial Assets:
Listed Shares 8,134 6,464
Unlisted Shares - -

FFiinnaanncciiaall  LLiiaabbiilliittiieess  aatt  AAmmoorrttiisseedd  CCoosstt
Trade & Other Payables 1,087 1,221

BBoorrrroowwiinnggss
MBIE STAPP Loan 1,065 1,065

For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits
held on call with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year as shown in the Cash Flow
Statement is reconciled to the related items in the Statement of Financial Position as follows:

During the year the following receipts (payments) were received from (made to) Board members and
associated personnel. These were conducted on normal commercial terms:
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BDO INVERCARGILL 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 

TO THE READERS OF OTAGO MUSEUM TRUST BOARD’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
AND STATEMENT OF SERVICE PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022 

 
 
The Auditor-General is the auditor of Otago Museum Trust Board (the Museum). The Auditor-General has 
appointed me, Aaron Higham, using the staff and resources of BDO Invercargill, to carry out the audit of 
the financial statements and statement of service performance of the Museum on his behalf. 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited: 
 
• the financial statements of the Museum on pages 75 to 100, that comprise the statement of 

financial position as at 30 June 2022, the statement of financial performance, statement of 
other comprehensive revenue and expense, statement of changes in net assets/equity and 
statement of cash flows for the year ended on that date and the notes to the financial 
statements that include accounting policies and other explanatory information; and 

 
• the statement of service performance of the Museum on pages 32 to 70. 
 
In our opinion: 
 
• the financial statements of the Museum: 

 
- present fairly, in all material respects: 

 
o its financial position as at 30 June 2022; and 
o its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended; and 

 
- comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand in accordance with 

Public Benefit Entity Standards with disclosure concessions; and 

• the statement of service performance of the Museum presents fairly, in all material respects, 
the Museum’s achievements measured against the performance targets adopted for the year 
ended 30 June 2022. 

 
 
Our audit of the financial statements was completed on 28 October 2022. This is the date at which our 
opinion is expressed. 
 
The basis for our opinion is explained below. In addition, we outline the responsibilities of the Board and 
our responsibilities relating to the financial statements and the statement of service performance, we 
comment on other information, and we explain our independence. 
 
Basis for our opinion 
 
We carried out our audit in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards, which incorporate 
the Professional and Ethical Standards and the International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) issued by 
the New Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. Our responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Responsibilities of the auditor section of our report. 
 
We have fulfilled our responsibilities in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards.  
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. 
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Responsibilities of the Board for the financial statements and the statement of service performance 
 
The Board is responsible on behalf of the Museum for preparing financial statements that are fairly 
presented and that comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand.  
 
The Board is also responsible for preparing a statement of service performance for the Museum that is 
fairly presented. This responsibility arises because the Museum has elected to prepare performance 
information in accordance with Public Benefit Entity Standards with disclosure concessions. 
 
The Board is responsible for such internal control as it determines is necessary to enable it to prepare 
financial statements and a statement of service performance that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements and the statement of service performance, the Board is responsible 
on behalf of the Museum for assessing the Museum’s ability to continue as a going concern. The Board is 
also responsible for disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting, unless the Board intends to wind up the Museum or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
The Board’s responsibilities arise from the Otago Museum Trust Board Act 1996. 
 
Responsibilities of the auditor for the audit of the financial statements and the statement of service 
performance 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements and the 
statement of service performance, as a whole, are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.  
 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit carried out in 
accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when 
it exists. Misstatements are differences or omissions of amounts or disclosures, and can arise from fraud or 
error. Misstatements are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the decisions of readers taken on the basis of these financial statements and the 
statement of service performance. 
 
We have agreed to audit the statement of service performance that the Board has elected to prepare for 
the Museum. 
 
For the budget information reported in the financial statements, our procedures were limited to 
checking that the information agreed to the Museum’s annual plan. 
 
We did not evaluate the security and controls over the electronic publication of the financial statements 
and the statement of service performance. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards, we exercise professional 
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. Also: 
 
• We identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements and the 

statement of service performance, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
 

• We obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Museum’s internal control. 

 
• We evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by the Board. 
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• We evaluate the appropriateness of the reported service performance within the Museum’s 
framework for reporting its performance. 

 
• We conclude on the appropriateness of the use of the going concern basis of accounting by the 

Board and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Museum’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in 
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements and statement of service 
performance, or if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Museum to cease to continue as a going concern. 
 

• We evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements and the statement of service performance 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
We communicate with the Board regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit.  
 
Our responsibilities to audit the financial statements arise from the Public Audit Act 2001. 
 
Other information 
 
The Board is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included on pages 4 to 29, and 101, but does not include the financial statements and the statement of 
service performance, and our auditor’s report thereon. 
 
Our opinion on the financial statements and the statement of service performance does not cover the other 
information and we do not express any form of audit opinion or assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements and the statement of service performance, our 
responsibility is to read the other information. In doing so, we consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the financial statements and the statement of service performance or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on our work, 
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that 
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 
Independence 
 
We are independent of the Museum in accordance with the independence requirements of the Auditor-
General’s Auditing Standards, which incorporate the independence requirement of the Professional and 
Ethical Standard 1: International Code of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners issued by the New Zealand 
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board.  
 
Other than in our capacity as auditor, we have no relationship with, or interests in, the Museum. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Aaron Higham 
BDO Invercargill 
On behalf of the Auditor-General 
Invercargill, New Zealand 
 



105



TŪHURA OTAGO MUSEUM 
419 Great King St, Dunedin

www.otagomuseum.nz


